
AGENDA 
MERCED COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

December 16, 2024 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Merced County Office of Education  -  632 West 13th Street, Merced CA 95341 – Board Room 
The meeting begins at 3:00 p.m. 

[These proceedings may be recorded.] 

I. Open

A. Call to Order at __________ PM by Chairperson ________________

B. Roll Call: Fred Honoré, Chairperson _____ 
Dennis Hanks, Vice Chairperson _____  
Frank Fagundes, Member _____ 
Tim Razzari, Member _____ 
Geneva Brett, Member _____ 

C. Others Present: _________________________________________________________

II. Flag Salute - Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

III. Annual Reorganization

A. Oath of Office Administered by County Superintendent of Schools, Steve M. Tietjen to:

Frank Fagundes – Board Trustee, Area 3 
The newly elected Board Member, Rodrigo Espinoza will be sworn in by December 18, 2024 

B. Nomination and Selection of Chairperson for 2025

Motion by__________ Seconded by__________ Vote__________

C. Nomination and Selection of Vice Chairperson for 2025

Motion by__________ Seconded by__________ Vote__________

IV. Presentation:

A. Presentation of Plaques to MCOE Outstanding Classified, Certificated, and Management
Employees for the Quarter ending December 2024

1. Classified Employee:  Benjamin Vang, Superintendent’s Office
2. Classified Employee:  Graciela Ceja, Special Education
3. Certificated Employee:  Ann Ditko, Special Education
4. Management Employee:  Rosaura Guzman, Educational Services

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 1 of 129



V. Consent Agenda:  Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine administrative functions and will
be acted on by the Board in one motion and one vote.  Any items under the Consent Agenda may be discussed; however, if the
item needs further clarification and discussion, it may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of the Board or the
Superintendent and considered separately.  Information concerning Consent Agenda items will be provided to each Board
member for study before the meeting.  It is understood that the Superintendent recommends approval of all consent items unless
otherwise noted.  (Board Bylaw 9322)

A. Minutes of Regular Meeting on November 18, 2024

B. Retirement Resolution:
1. Resolution No. 2024-34 Honoring Cristina Vallejo

Motioned by __________ Seconded by __________ Vote __________ 

VI. Written Communications

A. Correspondence Received By Chairperson

B. Correspondence Received By Board Members

C. Correspondence Received By Superintendent:

VII. Call for Public Comments on Agenda & Non-Agenda Items
During this portion of the agenda, the public is invited to address the Board on any item of interest that is within the Board’s
jurisdiction (Education Code 35145.5; Government Code 54954.3).  The Board shall conduct no discussion, deliberation, or action
on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as authorized by law raised (Education Code 35145.5, Government
Code 54954.2).  Members of the public are limited to five minutes on each topic or agenda item and public participation cannot
exceed 20 minutes total for each topic or agenda item (Government Code 54954.3; Board Bylaw 9322 & 9323).

VIII. Future Agenda Items

A. Selection of new Board Representatives to serve in January on:

• Outstanding Employee Selection Committee [Frank]

• Merced County School Boards Association Executive Committee (MCSBA)
(2-year term) [Geneva]

• Head Start Policy Council (2-year term) [Tim]

• Merced County Committee on School District Organization (4-year term) [Geneva]

IX. Superintendent’s and Board Member’s Report (Information/Discussion Only)

A. Board Member’s Report (if any) Board Members 

B. Superintendent’s Report Steve M. Tietjen 
1. Report on the 2024 CSBA Annual Education Conference & Trade Show

held December 4-7, 2024, in Anaheim.

X. Business Items for Action

A. Schelby Agriculture Scholarship for 2024-2025 Steve M. Tietjen 
County Superintendent 

It is recommended that the Board of Education review the Schelby Agriculture
Scholarship for 2024-2025, approve payment of $200 to Merced College
Foundation, and authorize Merced College Foundation to Select Recipient

Motioned by __________ Seconded by __________ Vote __________

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 2 of 129



B. 2024-2025 First Interim Report Rosa Casillas 
Director-Bus. Srvs. 

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the First Interim
Report and the Criteria and Standards Review and authorization of the
Certification of Interim Report

1. Approval of First Interim Report
i. Form 01I-School Services General Fund Budget Revisions
ii. Form 09I-Charter School Fund Budget Revisions
iii. Form 11I-Adult Education Fund Budget Revisions
iv. Form 12I-Child Development Budget Revisions

2. Approval of Criteria and Standards Review, Form 01CSI

3. Authorize the County Superintendent to sign the Certification of Interim Report (CI)

 Motioned by __________ Seconded by __________ Vote __________ 

Adjournment: __________ PM  

  Motioned by __________ Seconded by __________ Vote __________ 

Americans With Disabilities Act Assistance:  Auxiliary aids and services include a wide range of services and devices that promote 
effective communication for individuals with disabilities.  If you require such assistance, please notify the Office of the Superintendent at (209) 
381-6601 as soon as possible. Every effort will be made to give primary consideration to expressed preferences or provide equally effective
means of communication to ensure equal access to the meetings of the Merced County Board of Education.
(Government Code 54954.2) (Board Bylaw 9320 & 9322)

Availability of Documents for Public Inspection:  Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular 
meeting agenda and distributed by the Merced County Office of Education to all or a majority of the members of the Merced County Board of 
Education less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection in the Superintendent’s Office at the Merced County 
Office of Education, 632 West 13th Street, Merced, CA  95341, during normal business hours.  The agenda is made available on our website: 
www.mcoe.org  (Government Code 54957.5) (Board Bylaw 9320 & 9322) 

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 3 of 129

http://www.mcoe.org/


Merced County Board of Education 

Annual 
Reorganization

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 4 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 5 of 129



Merced County Board of Education 

Presentation

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 6 of 129



December 6, 2024 

To: All MCOE Employees 

From: Outstanding Employee Selection Committee 

Subject: OUTSTANDING EMPLOYEES  

The following Merced County Office of Education employees have been selected as MCOE’s 

“Outstanding Employees” for quarter ending DECEMBER 2024.  

 CLASSIFIED   CLASSIFIED 

  Benjamin Vang    Graciela Ceja 
 Superintendent’s Office       Special Education Dept.  

    CERTIFICATED  Confidential/Supervisory/Management 

  Ann Ditko  Rosaura Guzman 
Special Education Dept.  Educational Services Dept. 

Benjamin, Graciela, Ann and Rosaura, who exemplify MCOE’s commitment to quality 

education and students, will be honored at the December 16, 2024 Board Meeting at 3:00pm.  

Congratulations to our Employees of the
Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 7 of 129



Merced County Board of Education 

Consent Agenda

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 8 of 129



Minutes 11/18/2024 1 

MINUTES 
MERCED COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

November 18, 2024 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Merced County Office of Education Board Room 
632 W. 13th Street, Merced, CA 95341 

I. Opening

A. Board Chairperson, Fred Honoré, called the closed session meeting of the Merced
County Board of Education to order at 3:00 PM.

B. Members present were Fred Honoré, Dennis Hanks, and Tim Razzari. Frank Fagundes
and Geneva Brett were absent.

C. Others present Alex Putzcys,  Chistina Vara, Christie Hendricks,  Curt Royer, Dan
Murphy, Don Bragonier, Lenna Bragonier, Erika Davalos-Lemus, Gaye Riggs, Laura
Andrews, Laura Fong, Lee Andersen, Maria Barajas-Duran, Martin Macias, Nathan
Quevedo, Pam Royer, Rodrigo Espinoza, Rosa Barragan, Sharon Spinardi, Sharon
Twitty, Susan Coston, Yolanda Campos, and Maria Cuevas-Executive Assistant to the
Superintendent, Steve M. Tietjen-County Superintendent.

II. Flag Salute – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

III. Presentation:

A. Steve M. Tietjen presented and read the resolution 2024-08 presented to Dr. Lee
Andersen created for renaming the Atwater Valley Community High School to Dr. Lee
Andersen Education Center-Atwater.  Steve also read the resolution 2024-09 in
recognition of Outgoing Board Member, Fred Honoré. A plaque was presented to Fred
Honoré for his 21 years of service on the Merced Board of Education.

IV. Recess: A brief recess was taken and everyone walked over to the Newbold conference room
for a small reception in honor of Dr. Lee Andersen.

V. Consent Agenda: Items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine administrative functions

and will be acted on by the Board in one motion and one vote.  Any items under the Consent Agenda may be
discussed; however, if the item needs further clarification and discussion, it may be removed from the Consent
Agenda at the request of the Board or the Superintendent and considered separately.  Information concerning
Consent Agenda items will be provided to each Board member for study prior to the meeting.  It is understood that
the Superintendent recommends approval of all consent items unless otherwise noted.  (Board Bylaw 9322)

A. Minutes of Regular Meeting on October 21, 2024

Dennis Hanks moved and Tim Razzari seconded the motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
as submitted along with the October 21, 2024 minutes.  The motion carried with a vote of 3-0 
(Fagundes and Brett were absent). 

VI. Written Communications

A. Correspondence Received By Chairperson: None.

B. Correspondence Received By Board Members: None.

C. Correspondence Received By Superintendent: None.

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 9 of 129



Minutes 11/18/2024 2 

VII. Call for Public Comments on Agenda & Non-Agenda Items
The public was invited to address agenda items, submit items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board for
future consideration, or speak to issues related to the function and operation of the County Board of Education.

No comments were made.

VIII. Future Agenda Items

A. Annual Reorganizational Meeting – December 16, 2024

IX. Superintendent’s and Board Members’ Report (Information/Discussion Only)

A. Board Member’s Report (if any): Board Member, Dennis Hanks mentioned him seeing
Adam Gray at an event and heard about how high school student, Nathan Monroe
lobbied about the services and grants available to students in the county of Merced.

B. Superintendent’s Report:
1. Thanked the Superintendent’s office staff for the reception.
2. Provided an update on the elections. The next update will be done on the 19th by

the end of the day.
3. Changes will take place in the MCOE Complex as a very much-needed fence goes

up. There will be an automated door to the fence on the M street section of the
complex. The project will be conducted in phases and completed in early January.
Beginning in December the M Street parking lot entrance will be closed and a
temporary entrance on N Street will be available to enter the parking lot.

X. Business Items for Action

A. Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report

It was recommended that the Board of Education review and approve the Uniform
Complaint Report Summary for the Quarterly Period July 2024 through September 2024.

Erika Davalos-Lemus provided the report on Willimas Site Visits – 2024 Annual Report
on the Status of Schools in Merced County and the 2024 Annual Report on the Status of
Schools in Merced County.

Dennis Hanks moved, and Tim Razzari seconded a motion to approve the Uniform
Complaint Report Summary for the Quarterly Period July 2024 through September 2024
as submitted. The motion carried with a vote of 3-0 (Fagundes and Brett were absent).

The Board identified closed session agenda item(s) and proceeded into Closed Session. 

The public was invited to comment on identified items before adjournment into the Closed Session. 

The Board proceeded into a Closed Session. 

XI. Closed Session
The Merced County Board of Education met in closed session to conference regarding real
property transactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8.

The Board proceeded into an Open Session. 

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 10 of 129



Minutes 11/18/2024 3 

XV. Adjournment

Tim Razzari moved, and Dennis Hanks seconded the motion to adjourn the regular meeting 
of the Merced County Board of Education at 3:49 PM.  The motion carried with a vote  
of 3-0 (Fagundes and Brett were absent). 

Respectfully submitted, 

Steve M. Tietjen, Ed.D. 
County Superintendent of Schools 
Secretary to the Board of Education 

SMT/mc 

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 11 of 129



Merced County Board of Education 

Business Items 
for Action

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 12 of 129



1st Interim Budget

Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Steve M. Tietjen, Ed.D
County Superintendent of Schools

Public Hearing
December 16, 2024

Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 13 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 14 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 15 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 16 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 17 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 18 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 19 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 20 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 21 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 22 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 23 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 24 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 25 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 26 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 27 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 28 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 29 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 30 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 31 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 32 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 33 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 34 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 35 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 36 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 37 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 38 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 39 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 40 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 41 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 42 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 43 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 44 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 45 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 46 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 47 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 48 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 49 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 50 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 51 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 52 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 53 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 54 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 55 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 56 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 57 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 58 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 59 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 60 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 61 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 62 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 63 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 64 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 65 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 66 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 67 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 68 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 69 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 70 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 71 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 72 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 73 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 74 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 75 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 76 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 77 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 78 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 79 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 80 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 81 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 82 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 83 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 84 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 85 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 86 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 87 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 88 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 89 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 90 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 91 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 92 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 93 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 94 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 95 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 96 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 97 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 98 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 99 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 100 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 101 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 102 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 103 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 104 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 105 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 106 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 107 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 108 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 109 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 110 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 111 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 112 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 113 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 114 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 115 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 116 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 117 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 118 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 119 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 120 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 121 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 122 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 123 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 124 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 125 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 126 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 127 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 128 of 129



Board Agenda Packet 12/16/2024     Page 129 of 129


	0 12.16.2024 Agenda
	0 Annual Reorganization - updated
	1 Presentation - updated
	2 DECEMBER 2024 EoQ Announcement
	3 Consent Agenda - 12.16.24
	4 Minutes 11.18. 2024
	5 Superintendents Cover - updated
	6 Business Items Cover
	7 24-25 1st Interim Budget
	0 12 16 2024 Agenda.pdf
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING




